
 
                       TOWN OF RIDGEFIELD 
                            Inland Wetlands Board 

 
 
 

2022-10-13                                                                                                                                      Page 1 of 5 
 

APPROVED/REVISED MINUTES 

October 13, 2022 

Members present: Susan Baker, vice chair; Alan Pilch, secretary; Tracey Miller, Tim Bishop, 
David Smith (joined at 7:11PM) 

 
 
Member Absent:   Chris Phelps, 
 
Also present:  Andrew P. Hally, wetland agent; Aarti Paranjape, Recording Secretary; Lee 

Bussinger, Mike Mazzucco, P.E.; Robert DeRoma,  Richard Lipton, Jason 
Williams 

I:          Call to order 
 

 Ms. Baker called the meeting to order at 7:00P.M. 
 

      
           II:      Application for Discussion:  

           
1. (Contd.) IW-22-23, 131 Seth Low Mountain Road, Summary Ruling application for 

violation of excavating, grubbing and filling within the wetlands and a corrective 
application involving remediation including planting and stabilization. 
Owner/Applicant: Lee Bussinger.  
https://ridgefieldct.viewpointcloud.com/records/87072 
 
Mr. Bussinger updated the Board with the planting plan. Herbaceous planting is 
proposed between the water and grassy area. The planting includes shade trees. The dead 
trees blocking the flow of the water flow will be removed. 
Mr. Pilch inquired how many dead trees would be removed and what distance from the 
planting area. He asked if the width of the herbaceous species proposed is 36”. 
Mr. Pilch suggested at least five feet of the planting buffer at the south side should be 
planted. 
Mr. Bishop confirmed that no new trees are being removed and that only dead fallen 
material is being removed. 
Ms. Miller inquired how will the invasive species removed. She suggested no chemicals 
should be used. 
Mr. Bussinger stated that the process of removal of invasive species will be manual only 
and no machines or chemicals will be used. 
 
Discussion ensued and following special conditions were stated: 

https://ridgefieldct.viewpointcloud.com/records/87072


 
                       TOWN OF RIDGEFIELD 
                            Inland Wetlands Board 

 
 
 

2022-10-13                                                                                                                                      Page 2 of 5 
 

• Minimum of five feet of planting buffer at the south side (more 
recommended). 

• Removal of the invasive species will be manually only.  
• No chemicals or mechanical excavation will be involved. 
• Implementation deadline of May 30, 2023. 

 
             Mr. Bishop Motioned to approve the above Summary Ruling application with Special 

conditions stated and Standard conditions. Ms. Miller Seconded.  Motion carried 5-0-
0. 

 
              

        2.  (Contd.) IW-22-26, 66 Keeler Drive, Summary Ruling Application to a correct a violation    
which includes to dredge pond and install stone retaining walls around perimeter, install 
new weir, restore other work within the upland review area of Wetlands. Owner: Alexandre 
Suter. Applicant: Mike Mazzucco.  
                https://ridgefieldct.viewpointcloud.com/records/87703 

 

           Mr. Mazzucco updated the Board with the revised plan. The plan shows the dredging 
sequence along with the stockpile for dewatering. And construction entrance on western side. 
The stonewall as proposed around the pond will be removed. The armoring at the spillway is 
reduced into the existing channel. The planting is updated, the entrance or the inlet of the pond 
where are we just calling out a sandbag diversion, with a sump would just be piped around as a 
force main around the pond back into downstream channel. The stonewall will more of a stone 
slope embankment than a retaining wall.  

Mr. Pilch inquired how much volume of material excavated. He asked for the dimensions of the 
dewatering stockpile. 

Mr. Mazzucco confirmed it will be 300 cubic yards which is less than previously proposed. He 
added that the stockpile will be placed at two places, one on each side of the pond. 

Mr. Bishop inquired specifically about the planting plan. Mr. Mazzucco stated there will be trees 
and a no mow zone as suggested by the Board. 

Mr. Miller inquired about the purpose of the weirs and if they could be eliminated. She said that 
weir could pose a challenge for fish or amphibian species. 

Mr. Mazzucco stated that weirs will handle the storm event and these will help to keep the pond 
elevation at an elevation of 571 feet. He added there is not enough water which will support the 
fish passage anyway and amphibians can move around the weirs. 

Ms. Baker inquired if there is any buffer around the pond demarcating the edge of lawn. 

https://ridgefieldct.viewpointcloud.com/records/87703


 
                       TOWN OF RIDGEFIELD 
                            Inland Wetlands Board 

 
 
 

2022-10-13                                                                                                                                      Page 3 of 5 
 

Mr. Mazzucco stated that Mr. Hally had suggested no mow zone of 5-10 feet.  Ms. Baker 
requested a delineation of the edge of the no mow zone, normally boulders. 

Plantings include mix of arrowwood, winterberry holly and black topiary. 

Mr. Pilch recommended the plan be amended to show the extent of lawn, and suggested planting 
at west side and south side, the shade trees will support the well being of the pond by reducing 
fertilizer inputs into the pond. 

Mr. Bishop agreed that shade trees will help with the thermal pollution and swap of herbaceous 
with shade trees will be healthy for the pond. 

The Board acknowledged the efforts by applicants. Discussion continued to next meeting. 
Applicant will address the suggestions by the Board. 

3.  (Contd.) IW-22-27, 40 Mountain Road, Summary Ruling application to correct a   violation 
of installing a patio within wetlands and upland review area of wetlands. Owner: Pilar Magrigal. 
Applicant: Robert DeRoma.  
 https://ridgefieldct.viewpointcloud.com/records/87687 

 Applicant was not present at the start, he joined at end of meeting at 8:38 PM. 

Mr. Hally stated that the applicant has not yet ironed out the neighbor’s issue. No concrete 
documents have been submitted by the applicant stating the neighbor is in agreement and allows 
the applicant to maintain the planting and lawn on neighbor’s property. 

Mr. Hally also stated that the Board has asked for a third party review of the soil scientist to 
determine if the patio is in the wetlands. Mr. McManus was hired as a third-party reviewer and 
he confirmed that the structure in violation is not in the wetlands but is twenty feet away in the 
upland review area. 

Mr. Pilch inquired if Mr. McManus was able to opine that the wetlands soils are not present due 
to the fill involved with the construction of patio. The property lines should be demarcated 
clearly. 

Mr. Hally said he did not opine, but Mr. McManus typically would put it in his report. 

Discussion ensued, and the Board agreed that the applicant will have to demarcate his property 
with the buffer plantings on his own property and that he will not maintain the lawn on the 
neighbor’s property to avoid any civil issues with the neighbor. The applicant will submit a 
notarized document stating that the triangle shaped land belongs to 40 Mountain Road owner.  

Applicant joined at 8:38 PM just before the meeting was being adjourned. The Board suggested 
applicant to get in touch with Mr, Hally, who will direct him to address the Board 
recommendations and present the revised plans at the next meeting. 

https://ridgefieldct.viewpointcloud.com/records/87687


 
                       TOWN OF RIDGEFIELD 
                            Inland Wetlands Board 

 
 
 

2022-10-13                                                                                                                                      Page 4 of 5 
 

 III:     Application(s) for Receipt: 
 

           1.    IW-22-37, 0 Wilton Road East, Summary Ruling application to construct single Family 
home and a bridge over Silvermine River within wetlands and upland review area of 
wetlands. Owner: Pyramid Luxury Homes of Ridgefield LLC. Applicant: Kate 
Throckmorton. For receipt and scheduling a sitewalk. 

              https://ridgefieldct.viewpointcloud.com/records/88408 
 

        2.  IW-22-39, 33 Beaver Brook Rd., Summary Ruling application for the installation of 
drainage pipe without any permits within upland review area of wetlands. Owner: Michael 
Caramadre. Applicant: Kathleen Royle. For receipt and scheduling a sitewalk 

            https://ridgefieldct.viewpointcloud.com/records/88999 
 
 

3.  IW-22-40, 100 Danbury Road, Revision to Summary Ruling Application for prior 
approval, the scope of work in reduced by reducing  the number of units from 16 to 6 within 
the upland review area of the wetlands. Owner: Ridgefield Apartments Inc. Applicant: 
Robert R. Jewell. For receipt and scheduling a sitewalk. 

      https://ridgefieldct.viewpointcloud.com/records/89213 
 

                Mr. Pilch  Motioned to receive the above three applications. Mr. Bishop Seconded. 
Motion carried 5-0-0. 

 
The sitewalk is scheduled for October 23, 2022 with discussion on October 27, 2022. 
 

IV:    List of Ongoing Enforcement by Agent: 

Mr Hally informed the Board that he issued the violation order to the 127 Wilton 
Road East homeowner who was performing work along the stream. The scope of 
work was more than maintenance of the stone wall. 
The homeowner will submit an application before the next regular meeting. 

V:       Other Business: 
  

1.              1. Pre-concept- 901 Ethan Allen Highway. ℅ Mr.DiNardo  
 

                    Mr. Lipton thanked the Board for allowing the presentation of the concept for the 
development of the site at Ethan Allen highway. He added the plan proposes lowest density 
development with minimum incursion but still economically viable. He added that a team of 
SLR (previously known as Milone and Macbroom) has been hired to develop the plans and 
concept. 
 

https://ridgefieldct/
https://ridgefieldct.viewpointcloud.com/records/88999
https://ridgefieldct.viewpointcloud.com/records/89213


 
                       TOWN OF RIDGEFIELD 
                            Inland Wetlands Board 

 
 
 

2022-10-13                                                                                                                                      Page 5 of 5 
 

Mr. Williams, Landscape Architect at SLR presented the concept. The development will be 
of residential complexes. The residential complexes will have parking spaces and other 
amenities. The entire site will have underground detention and stormwater systems and the 
water will be treated before it will enter any watercourses or wetlands. The paving will be 
pervious asphalt and will reduce impervious surface to a considerable extent. He added that 
no fill will be brought in and out of the site. The planting includes a restoration plan of mix 
of herbaceous plants with shade trees and under story trees. 
 
Board acknowledged the efforts made by the team and suggested that most of the work should 
reduce the encroachment of upland review area. The wetlands and pond should be protected 
and keep construction farther away from upland review area. Board suggested improvements 
to the overpass and proposing open box culvert at the brook crossing where the entrance 
driveway is proposed as opposed to installation of pipes to direct the waterflow. 
 
Mr. Lipton thanked the Board for their time and appreciated the feedback. 
 

VI:    Approval of Minutes: 
 

• Inland Wetlands Meeting: September 22, 2022 
 
             Mr. Bishop Motioned to approve minutes. Ms. Miller Seconded. Motion carried 5-0-0. 

 
 

VII:     Adjourn 
 
           Ms. Baker updated the Board that so far she has not received any nominations from RTC. 

Also the press release was in the happenings section and not in the legal notice. Staff will 
again send the notice to the Legal section. She added that as per Robert’s Rule, she is the 
official chair and she will continue until the elections in November. 

 
           Hearing no further business, Ms. Baker adjourned her last meeting as Chair at 8:57 PM. 
            

Respectfully submitted by, 

Aarti Paranjape 
Recording Secretary                               

 


